
  
 

      

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

    

  

   

  

  

        
         

 

CITY AND BOROUGH OF 

NEAU 
ALASKA'S CAPITAL CITY 

□ 

ASSEMBLY FINANCE COMMITTEE 
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING JOINT 

ASSEMBLY AIRPORT BOARD MEETING 
AGENDA 

March 06, 2024 at 5:30 PM 

Assembly Chambers/Zoom Webinar 

https://juneau.zoom.us/j/93917915176 or 1-253-215-8782 Webinar ID: 939 1791 5176 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. February 7, 2024 

D. AGENDA TOPICS 

2. Partner Agency Program Updates 

a. Juneau Arts and Humanities Council 

b. Juneau Community Foundation 

3. 2024 Assessed Property Valuations 

4. FY23 CBJ/BRH/JSD Audit 

5. Assembly/Community Grants & Budget Calendar 

6. Export Manufacturing Exemptions 

E. NEXT MEETING DATE 

7. April 6, 2024 

F. ADJOURNMENT 

ADA accommodations available upon request: Please contact the Clerk's office 36 hours prior to any meeting so 
arrangements can be made for closed captioning or sign language interpreter services depending on the meeting 
format. The Clerk's office telephone number is 586-5278, TDD 586-5351, e-mail: city.clerk@juneau.gov. 

1 

mailto:city.clerk@juneau.gov
https://juneau.zoom.us/j/93917915176


  

 
    

 
  

 
  

 
         

 
  

 
     

 
 

    
 

  
 

      
  

 
  

 
 

  
 

   
 

       
 

  
 

  
 

     
     

       
       

      
         

      
  

 
    

     
 

 
   

  
 

CITY AND BOROUGH OF 

NEAU 
ALASKA'S CAPITAL CITY 

□ 

Section C, Item 1. 

ASSEMBLY FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

February 7, 2024, at 5:30 PM 
Assembly Chambers/Zoom Webinar 

https://juneau.zoom.us/j/93917915176 or 1-253-215-8782 Webinar ID: 939 1791 5176 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 5:35 pm by Chair Weldon. 

B. ROLL CALL 

Committee Members Present: Chair Beth Weldon; Michelle Hale; Greg Smith; Paul Kelly; Ella Adkison; Wade 
Bryson 

Committee Members Present Virtually: Wáahlaal Gíidaak; Christine Woll; Alicia Hughes-Skandijs 

Committee Members Absent: 

Staff Members Present: Katie Koester, City Manager; Angie Flick, Finance Director; Adrien Wendel, Budget 
Manager; Robert Palmer, City Attorney; Alexandra Pierce, Tourism Manager 

Others Present: Liz Perry, Travel Juneau Executive Director; Frank Hauser, Juneau School District 
Superintendent 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. January 10, 2024 

The January 10, 2024 minutes were approved as presented. 

D. AGENDA TOPICS 

2. Audit Extension 

Angie Flick, Finance Director, stated that at the January 10, 2024 Assembly Finance Committee meeting 
Staff presented a memo that recommended the Assembly extend the City and Borough of Juneau (CBJ) 
contract with Elgee Rehfeld to continue their auditing work for Bartlett Hospital, Juneau School District 
(JSD), and the larger CBJ audit. She continued that she had spoken with the president of the Bartlett 
Board as well as Bartlett’s CFO and CEO, and that they had confirmed their approval of extending this 
contract for the year, with an expectation of looking at a Request for Proposal (RFP) for auditing services 
in the fall. She stated that the Assembly could choose to halt the extension and start an RFP now, 
otherwise Staff would work on the one-year extension. 

Assemblymember Bryson asked how the JSD financial situation fit into the audit work with regards to the 
contract extension or future contracts. He asked if the audit could prevent financial deficits moving 
forward. 

Ms. Flick replied that the auditors will continue to look at transactional data, testing, and bring forth 
concerns as they see them. 

2 

https://juneau.zoom.us/j/93917915176


       
 

     
  

 
    

 
  

 
  

        
       

     
       

 
        

    
        

     
      

  
 

        
      

  
    

  
 

       
 

 
 

         
   

  
 

     
   

  
 

      
        

 
 

         
         

     
       
      

      
  

 

□ 

age 2 of 12February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee Section C, Item 1.Agenda P 

The Assembly Finance Committee voiced their consent of extending the audit contract with Elgee 
Rehfeld for one year. 

Assemblymember Alicia Hughes-Skandijs joined the meeting via Zoom at 5:39 pm. 

3. Fund Balance Discussion 

Katie Koester, City Manager, introduced the memo on page 8 of the packet which followed up from the 
retreat discussion on what the Assembly wanted to spend the debt capacity and fund balance on. She 
clarified that although the memo showed $22 million in the unrestricted fund balance, this number was 
misleading because of the recommendation that the Assembly reserve $9 million for a cash flow cushion. 
She stated that the actual amount in the unrestricted fund balance was $31 million. 

Ms. Koester continued that this memo would help the Assembly be aware of near-term fund balance 
expenditures like the Title 49 rewrite and wastewater infrastructure projects. She explained that as Staff 
worked through the budget process, they were trying to draw out any one-time expenditures to relieve 
pressure on the operating budget. She stated that the memo discussed debt capacity and used a 
recommended target of $70 million, set by the Finance Director based on other factors such as interest 
rates. 

Ms. Koester pointed to page 9 of the packet which showed a list of near-term projects that needed to be 
funded this year. She stated that the largest of these projects was the public safety communications 
infrastructure which included the radio system for first responders, Capital City Fire Rescue (CCFR), 
Juneau Police Department (JPD), and Transit. She stated that infrastructure replacement was critical due 
to its aging. 

Assemblymember Bryson asked if the $16.5 million set aside for the new City Hall proposal was a part of 
the $31 million unrestricted fund balance. 

Ms. Koester replied that the $16.5 million was not a part of the $31 million unrestricted fund balance. 
She explained that there was a note on the memo which stated there would be expenditures for City Hall 
renovations and tenant improvements and that that amount had not been rolled into the fund balance 
because it sat in a dedicated CIP. 

Assemblymember Hughes-Skandijs asked if Ms. Koester would speak more to the public safety 
communications infrastructure project including what funds had been set aside and how encryption fit 
into the project. 

Ms. Koester responded that CBJ had half a million dollars in appropriated funds, $2 million in 
congressional directed funds pending at the federal level, and $1.5 million scheduled for FY26 from 1% 
temporary sales tax. 

Erann Kalwara, JPD Public Safety Manager, introduced herself and stated that part of her job was to 
support the radio system which is integral to JPD and CCFR first responders. She stated that the public 
safety communications system was severely aged and had components that could not be replaced. She 
explained that the project would update the parts of the system needing replacement and move it 
towards being technologically modern. She stated that a radio study’s results showed compelling data 
that suggested they join the Alaska Land Mobile Radio (ALMR) system, which would require substantial 
upgrades. 

3 



       
 

    
 

    
   

 
       

        
           

    
 

     
 

 
     

         
  

 
      

    
 

    
        

 
    

  
 

        
  

 
        

      
 

 
     

  
 

      
     

         
    

 
    

        
   

 
       

        
 
 

□ 

age 3 of 12Section C, Item 1.Agenda P February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee 

Assemblymember Smith asked if there were grants for this type of system. 

Ms. Koester stated that the congressionally directed spending was a form of grant and that Ms. Kalwara 
and herself were searching for grants in their own capacities. 

Ms. Kalwara added that they had received several Homeland Security grants which had enabled them to 
replace the dispatch radio consoles in the command center. She stated that smaller pieces of the system 
were upgraded with the help of smaller grants but that there weren’t any sizable grants available to 
complete the entire project. 

Chair Weldon asked if the project entailed replacement of major equipment or smaller equipment like 
walkie-talkies. 

Kalwara clarified that the project included everything from minor to major equipment. She stated that 
her team had identified points of failure in the system which had caused communication gaps for first 
responders. 

Assemblymember Bryson asked how the ability to communicate with Alaska State Troopers (AST) and 
CCFR could change with the update in encryption. 

Ms. Kalwara answered that by going digital the communications with AST and CCFR would improve and 
by joining the ALMR system they could communicate with others on the system statewide. 

Ms. Kalwara introduced Derek Bos, JPD Chief of Police who started in his new position in the beginning of 
February. 

Assemblymember Woll asked about the $9 million cushion suggested for the fund balance and if there 
were any cash flow issues. 

Ms. Flick answered that there were no cash flow issues and that this cushion was suggested so that the 
Assembly could take advantage of one-time events or opportunities that come along throughout the 
year. 

Assemblymember Hale stated that there was also restricted budget reserve on hand to cover unforeseen 
expenses. 

Ms. Flick responded that the intention of the restricted budget reserve was to provide two to three 
months of buffer for operating the city in the case of a dramatic event, such as a pandemic or a 
recession. She stated that this reserve had $19 million in it to cover the two to three months and that it 
might need another $1 million in funding to be considered whole. 

Assemblymember Smith stated that at the retreat the Assembly discussed and agreed to support the 
Title 49 rewrite. He asked if the $3 million discussed was needed this year or if it could instead be spread 
out over multiple years. 

Ms. Koester replied that a memo in the January 29 Committee of the Whole meeting packet outlined a 
three-year plan and that the amounts funded get larger in the 2nd and 3rd year. 

4 



       
 

       
    

 
   

      
  

 
      

      
 

 
 

   
        

      
 

    
           

       
  

 
      

      
     

  
 

     
   

 
    

   
 

 
  

 
      

        
      

        
  

 
      
    

           
       
       

        
  

        
   

□ 

age 4 of 12February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee Section C, Item 1.Agenda P 

Assemblymember Smith stated that wastewater, water systems and the public safety communications 
system would be good candidates for general obligation bonds. 

Assemblymember Woll stated that $17 million for the public safety communications infrastructure was a 
lot of money to ask from the voters and suggested they split up the funding of the project between 
general fund and bonds. 

Assemblymember Hughes-Skandijs expressed support for utility projects and the public safety 
communications infrastructure as strong candidates for bonds. She stated that there was potential for 
one-time spending for housing in addition to the Affordable Housing Fund. 

In response to questions regarding the required balance in the restricted budget reserve, Chair Weldon 
stated that the recommended balance was based on a resolution and wasn’t binding. She stated that to 
use the restricted budget reserve there had to be a plan to pay back the amount withdrawn. 

Assemblymember Bryson stated that keeping money in the restricted budget reserve reduced the need 
for the $9 million cushion. He stated that if the restricted budget reserve was funded slightly above two 
months operating cost then there would be less pressure on the floor of operating capital. He 
recommended funding the restricted budget reserve to the full amount. 

Chair Weldon clarified that the restricted budget reserve was not in a deficit of $1 million but that Staff 
had brought that amount back as a recommendation for this year. She stated that the restricted budget 
reserve was currently healthy. She also expressed support for funding the public safety infrastructure as 
well as utility projects. 

Assemblymember Hale commented that a bond for utility projects would potentially lower or prevent an 
increase in utility bills which would help lower income residents. 

Katie Koester expressed that she heard the Assembly in their desire to draft a bond proposition this year 
for critical infrastructure, utility projects, and some portion of public safety communications 
infrastructure. 

4. School District Discussion 

Ms. Koester introduced the memo on page 143 of the packet which outlined the Juneau School District 
(JSD) funding request. She stated that by the end of the meeting Staff needed direction from the 
Assembly on FY24 and FY25 cash assistance for the school district as well as the outline of a loan. She 
stated that those three requests would be brought back as separate ordinances to the Assembly at a 
special meeting later in February. 

Ms. Koester summarized the January 30 joint meeting with JSD. She stated that the Manager’s Office 
recommended covering a three-to-five-year loan with conditions of financial awareness, sharing of staff, 
and a plan to start paying back the loan starting in FY26. She stated that the formal request from JSD 
covered portions of facility maintenance, utility costs, property insurance, and operations. The proposal 
was for $4 million in direct spending by CBJ in FY24 and an additional $4 million in FY25. 
Ms. Koester presented page 144 of the packet which outlined the Manager’s Office proposal for the JSD 
deficit assistance. She explained funding details for FY25 and stated that the recommendation beyond 
FY25 was for CBJ to take on facilities maintenance, which would relieve JSD’s budget of $1.6 million for 
the foreseeable future. She continued that the recommendation was for JSD to begin repayment of the 

5 



       
 

    
        

   
 

         
   

 
   

 
    

    
 

    
          
 

 
       

         
          
      

 
      

        
   

 
    

      
     

       
 

  
     

        
    

 
       

  
 

        
       

       
        

      
 

 
         

 
      

 
  

□ 

age 5 of 12February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee Section C, Item 1.Agenda P 

loan in FY26 with three years of equal payments of $2.63 million at zero percent interest. Additionally, 
they would recommend transitioning the JSD maintenance supervisor to a CBJ employee in order to have 
access to all facility maintenance data contracts and files. 

Assemblymember Hale stated that page 144 of the packet showed a loan for $6.3 million but that the 
three payments of $2.63 million actually equaled $7.89 million. 

Ms. Koester acknowledged the mathematical error. 

Assemblymember Smith asked why a decision of FY24 shared services support needed to happen outside 
the normal FY25 budget process. He asked if the size of JSD’s FY25 structural deficit was known. 

Ms. Koester replied that JSD had requested the funding for FY24 as a mechanism to reduce the amount 
they would have to borrow because that would result in less cuts in subsequent years to meet the debt 
obligation. 

Ms. Flick added that the FY24 request addressed prior years deficits as well as the current year’s deficit. 
She stated that one reason the Assembly needed to look at FY24 and FY25 was because the continuation 
from a balanced budget in FY24, and the replication of cost sharing into FY25, would get JSD closer to 
starting FY25 with a structurally balanced budget. 

Ms. Koester stated that JSD had to submit their FY25 budget to the Alaska Department of Education and 
Early Development (DEED) by March 15th and in order for them to do that they needed to know how the 
Assembly was going to act on the funding request. 

Assemblymember Adkison stated that the Alaska Administrative Code declared that local contribution 
was defined as money appropriated to a district school operating fund by a city or borough. She asked if 
there had been discussion with DEED about CBJ taking over JSD property insurance. She expressed 
concern that these efforts could later be halted if they were found to be outside State law. 

Ms. Koester responded that funding utilities, property insurance, and facilities maintenance had some 
legal risk to it which was why the Manager’s Office had not included funding these areas in their 
recommendation. She directed the Assembly to pages three and four of the memo which discussed 
options if the Assembly wanted to go beyond the Manager’s recommendations. 

Assemblymember Woll asked if Robert Palmer, City Attorney, could answer the question about the level 
of specificity. 

Mr. Palmer stated that Frank Hauser, JSD Superintendent, and himself had had a preliminary 
conversation with DEED but no agreements had been made. He explained that DEED regulation did imply 
that municipalities could provide insurance, utilities, and maintenance of facilities but that if the funding 
was related to education it had to be accounted for in the operating budget. He explained that if the 
funding was considered to be unrelated to education then it would be considered special revenue and 
there would be no cap. 

Assemblymember Bryson expressed concern for fully digging JSD out of their current budget deficit. 

Chair Weldon asked for clarification that legally the loan had to be paid back. 

Mr. Palmer confirmed this. 

6 



       
 

 
       

      
 

      
      

 
       

          
   

 
  

 
     

    
 

 
    

 
      

 
 

      
     

 
      

      
       

 
 

      
   

 
    

 
      

    
    

     
         

 
         

  
 

 
   

  
 

     
     

□ 

age 6 of 12February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee Section C, Item 1.Agenda P 

Assemblymember Kelly asked how JSD arrived at the percentages of maintenance utilities insurance 
costs that were considered instructional and non-instructional. 

Mr. Hauser stated that they found the instructional day to be nine and a half hours long and explained 
the percentages found during and outside of that time frame for the costs shown in the memo. 

Assemblymember Hughes-Skandijs asked if the Manager’s recommendation for FY25 was to 
communicate to JSD that the Assembly would fund up to the cap, fund $2.3 million above the cap, and 
reduce the budget expenses to them by $1.6 million through shared costs. 

Ms. Koester replied that this was a correct summary of the recommendation for FY25. 

Assemblymember Bryson asked whether the non-instructional expenses covered utilities such as heat 
overnight and if the city could take over these expenses that were outside of the time students were in 
school. 

Mr. Hauser replied that that was correct. 

Assemblymember Smith asked what the best guess for the JSD FY25 deficit was, assuming the State 
raised the Base Student Allocation (BSA) to the flat funding level. 

Mr. Hauser replied that he believed it was too early to assume the State would raise the BSA and that a 
ballpark estimate would be nine to eleven million dollars in deficits for FY25. 

Ms. Koester pointed to the next section of page two of the memo which covered Staff recommendations 
to the Assembly if they decide to do more than the Manager’s recommendation. She explained her 
justifications for the percentages that Staff came up with regarding facilities maintenance, utilities, and 
property insurance. 

Assemblymember Bryson asked if the Assembly could fund the JSD request completely with a loan and 
not give any additional funding outside of that loan. 

Chair Weldon confirmed that and stated that those details were shown further in the memo. 

Ms. Koester continued by stating that the Manager’s proposal recognized that absorbing facilities 
maintenance would cause an ongoing operating budget pressure for CBJ. She stated that the Assembly 
could choose to increase the mill rate to help with funding. She stated another option was for the 
Assembly to fund unrestricted general fund balance, with the caution being that if that became a 
reoccurring expenditure then future Assembly bodies would be put in a difficult financial position. 

Assemblymember Smith asked if the $3.5 million for facilities maintenance in FY26 would reduce the JSD 
deficit or if that just included the additional cost to provide what was considered more adequate 
maintenance. 

Ms. Koester answered that it would relieve their budget of $1.6 million that they are currently spending 
on facilities maintenance. 

Assemblymember Smith asked if it was correct that by following the Manager’s recommendation for 
FY25, JSD would need to make about $7 million in cuts. 

7 



       
 

 
    

 
         

   
 

     
         

 
     

         
 

    
 

 
       

     
   

       
 

 
   

 
     

  
 

    
      

 
  
  

 
     

    
 

       
   

 
   

 
     

 
       

         
   

 
   

 
        

         

□ 

age 7 of 12Section C, Item 1.Agenda P February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee 

Ms. Flick confirmed that was true. 

Assemblymember Smith asked if JSD would need to continue to make cuts after the $2.1 million yearly 
repayment for three years, starting in FY26, to have a structurally balanced budget. 

Ms. Flick responded that JSD would need to make cuts to about a half a million dollars each of those 
three years to be structurally balanced, assuming the Assembly funded JSD at the same level as in FY25. 

Mr. Hauser stated that JSD was in the process of working with accounting software to integrate their 
systems more seamlessly to provide reports on staffing, budget, and expenditures. 

Assemblymember Smith asked what the general range of possible savings was in the model for school 
consolidation efforts. 

Mr. Hauser discussed the example of closing an elementary school, with potential savings from the 
change in staffing of about $688,000 on average across all six elementary schools. He stated that this 
example at the middle school level would save about $933,000 and at the high school level it would save 
about $1.3 million. He stated that there could be more savings if JSD returned a building to CBJ 
ownership. 

Assemblymember Adkison asked if those numbers accounted for hold harmless. 

Mr. Hauser replied that they did not because the enrollment numbers after a potential restructure were 
not known at this time. 

Assemblymember Smith stated that after a potential school consolidation, JSD would still need to 
significantly reduce staff at the remaining schools to balance their budget. 

Committee recessed at 7:23pm 
Committee reconvened at 7:41pm 

Ms. Koester introduced the first item on the Manager’s recommendations list for one-time funding in 
FY24 from the unrestricted general fund balance for $1.65 million. 

Motion: by Assemblymember Hale to direct staff to draft an ordinance with one-time funding from 
unrestricted general fund balance for $1,650,405 in FY24. 

Objection: by Assemblymember Bryson. 

Amendment: by Assemblymember Woll to change the amount of one-time funding to $3,922,787. 

Assemblymember Woll expressed concern for JPD’s ability to provide quality education if they weren’t 
fully funded. She expressed more interest in an Assembly decision to fund the maximum amount versus 
funding the lower amount with regards to the resulting community feedback. 

Objection: Assemblymember Bryson. 

Objection: Assemblymember Hale for the purpose of asking the maker of the amendment if she 
intends to recommend the same maximum funding level for FY25. 

8 



       
 

 
      

 
  

 
        

 
 

     
 

         
        

 
  

    
   

 
      

 
   

 
   

   
  

 
  

 
      

  
 

      
    

 
       

 
    

     
 

   
 

      
    

  
 

      
    

 
      

 

□ 

age 8 of 12February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee Section C, Item 1.Agenda P 

Assemblymember Woll confirmed that she intended to make the same recommendation for FY25. 

Assemblymembers Adkison, Smith, and Hughes-Skandijs each expressed support for the amendment. 

Chair Weldon asked for clarification on whether the amendment was for up to $3.9 million or strictly at 
that amount. 

Assemblymember Woll clarified that her amendment was for up to that amount. 

Objection: Chair Weldon for the purpose of expressing that funding at the higher amount would take 
away from other city projects that had been prioritized. 

Roll Call Vote on Amendment 
Ayes: Woll, Smith, Kelly, Adkison, Hughes-Skandijs, Wáahlaal Gíidaak 
Nays: Bryson, Hale, Chair Weldon 

Amendment Passed. Six (6) Ayes, Three (3) Nays. 

Objection to Original Motion as Amended: by Assemblymember Bryson. 

Roll Call Vote on Original Motion as Amended 
Ayes: Hale, Hughes-Skandijs, Wáahlaal Gíidaak, Adkison, Kelly, Smith, Woll 
Nays: Bryson, Chair Weldon 

Motion Passed. Seven (7) Ayes, Two (2) Nays. 

Ms. Koester introduced the second item on the Manager’s recommendations list for one-time funding in 
FY25 for $1.65 million. 

Motion: by Assemblymember Hale to direct staff to draft an ordinance with one-time funding from 
unrestricted general fund balance for $1,650,405 in FY25. 

Objection: by Assemblymember Adkison for the purpose of making an amendment. 

Amendment: by Assemblymember Adkison to change the amount of one-time funding to $3,922,787 
for the same reasons Assemblymember Woll described in the previous vote. 

Objection: by Assemblymember Bryson. 

Assemblymember Hughes-Skandijs stated that she believed having healthy funded public schools was a 
commonly shared value in Juneau and that funding $1.65 million in FY25 seemed like a responsible 
choice, in-line with following a step-down approach. 

Assemblymember Smith asked if the Assembly could act during the regular budget process to add funds 
if JSD still needed costs covered. 

Ms. Flick responded that as the Assembly they had an option to pass supplemental appropriations. 

9 



       
 

      
         

 
     

   
 

       
     

      
   

 
    
       

 
    

            
   

 
      

       
   

 
  

 
       

  
 

      
      

    
 

    
 

  
   
   

 
   

 
   

 
  

     
  

 
      

 
     

     
      

□ 

age 9 of 12Section C, Item 1.February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee Agenda P 

Chair Weldon stated that the Assembly had already approved $4 million in funding for FY24 and 
approving another $4 million would wipe out the JSD deficit, so they wouldn’t need a loan from CBJ. 

Adkison expressed concern for the effects on the community of not fully funding JSD, especially with 
regards to attracting families to move to Juneau. 

Assemblymember Hale stated that JSD had lost 1,500 enrolled students since the year 2000 and that 
during that time a second high school had been built. She expressed concern for funding the maximum 
amount of $3.9 million in FY25, stating it would send the wrong message to the schools. She expressed 
support for $1.65 million for FY25. 

Assemblymember Bryson expressed concern for the precedent that this would set, to bail out a 
department and wipe out $8 million in unrestricted general fund balance that the city had saved. 

Assemblymember Smith expressed opposition to the amendment, stating that JSD needed to make the 
necessary structural changes and there would still be time for the Assembly to adjust and help more if it 
was necessary later on. 

Assemblymember Woll asked the maker of the amendment if the proposed amount was up to $3.9 
million in funding or precisely at that amount. She also asked Mr. Palmer if the Assembly could change 
the funding amount after hearing feedback from the public. 

Adkison confirmed the amendment was for up to $3.9 million. 

Mr. Palmer stated that the Assembly could change the funding amount through the budget process later 
if they wished to do so. 

Assemblymember Kelly stated that this decision was about the Assembly giving direction. He explained 
that he would rather the Assembly come in at a low funding amount and have the flexibility to go higher 
after hearing feedback. He expressed opposition to the amendment. 

Chair Weldon declared a two-minute at ease. 

Roll Call Vote on Amendment 
Ayes: Adkison, Wáahlaal Gíidaak, Woll 
Nays: Bryson, Smith, Hale, Hughes-Skandijs, Kelly, Chair Weldon 

Amendment Failed. Three (3) Ayes, Six (6) Nays. 

Objection to Original Motion: by Assemblymember Bryson. 

Roll Call Vote on Original Motion 
Ayes: Hale, Smith, Kelly, Adkison, Woll, Hughes-Skandijs, Wáahlaal Gíidaak, Chair Weldon 
Nays: Bryson 

Motion Passed. Eight (8) Ayes, One (1) Nay. 

Ms. Koester introduced the third item on the Manager’s recommendations list for a $4 million loan to 
JSD with zero percent interest. She stated that the recommended term was five years with the first-year 
payback in FY26 and equal payments remaining for those three years. 

10 



       
 

 
     

         
      

 
          

        
      

   
 

     
       

        
 

 
 

  
 

      
     

  
 

         
       

     
 

       
       

     
     

     
 

      
     
   

 
     

    
 

       
    

 
         

  
     

    
 
 
 
 

□ 

10 of 12Section C, Item 1.February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee Agenda Page 

Ms. Flick stated that the FY24 assistance directed by the Assembly would leave a deficit of roughly $2 
million dollars for FY24 and that with Assembly direction for a maximum $4 million loan, that would give 
JSD the structural balance needed for FY24 according to DEED’s requirements. 

Motion: by Assemblymember Hale to direct Staff to draft an ordinance loaning up to $4 million to the 
Juneau School District at zero percent interest with a five-year term, with the first year of payback in 
FY26, and equal payments for FY27 and FY28, to be paid from the restricted budget reserve. She asked 
for unanimous consent. 

Assemblymember Hale spoke to her motion stating that the restricted budget reserve was there for 
emergencies and that the current JSD deficit situation did constitute an emergency. She stated that there 
was a clear plan to pay it back and that it wouldn’t affect the unrestricted general fund balance. 

Motion passed by unanimous consent. 

5. Travel Juneau Program Update 

Ms. Flick introduced Travel Juneau as this month’s partner agency to provide a program update. She 
stated that while Travel Juneau may share some aspirations for the upcoming year, this was not a budget 
presentation. 

Liz Perry, Travel Juneau President & CEO, introduced their 2023 annual report, found on page ten of the 
packet. She introduced the Travel Juneau staff and pointed to their FY22 and FY23 balance sheet as well 
as the 2023 visitation numbers. She stated that they’ve seen a rebound in visitation from the Covid era. 

Ms. Perry continued to discuss Travel Juneau’s marketing strategy, website, and social media channels. 
She explained how they’ve seen a rebound in the number of paid partners coming into the organization 
that would impact their ability to collect revenue. She pointed to the Travel Juneau long term goals and 
strategies found on page 22 of the packet and stated that one of their goals was to increase the number 
of fully independent travelers visiting Juneau. 

Assemblymember Woll asked if the organization had discussed the short-term rental situation in Juneau 
and how that might impact visitors and tourism employees, stating that that was one of the Assembly’s 
priorities to act on this year. 

Ms. Perry stated that they had discussed short-term rentals in relation to the shortage of available hotel 
rooms in the summer and tourism staff housing. 

Chair Weldon asked Staff to clarify whether Travel Juneau’s budget was already in the Assembly budget 
and if no action was needed. 

Ms. Flick confirmed that was true and stated that the Assembly could possibly hear from Travel Juneau 
to sponsor community requests for items above the base budget. She explained that through the 
resolution on the hotel bed tax, CBJ was treating Travel Juneau somewhat similar to a department and 
reviewing their budget through the normal Manager’s budget review process. 

11 



       
 

  
 

      
    

      
 

 
        
     

       
   

 
    

 
          

      
 

 
      

 
 

       
     

 
     

 
      

       
  
 

 
         
  

 
     

     
 

    
 

 
        

           
        

       
        

  
 

   
    

 

□ 

11 of 12Section C, Item 1.February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee Agenda Page 

6. Passenger Fees 

Alexandra Pierce, CBJ Tourism Manager, summarized the passenger fee ordinance that required CBJ to 
solicit passenger fee recommendations from the public. She explained that after their budget was 
compiled, feedback would be requested from the Assembly before putting the budget back out for public 
review. 

Ms. Pierce continued with details about the program stating that there were efforts to bolster and 
modernize it. She discussed the Juneau Economic Development Council (JEDC) mobile data purchase 
program which used cellphone data to see which areas in Juneau tourists were visiting. She expressed 
her opinion that the cellphone data should be sharable with other entities. 

Assemblymember Smith asked about the issue of public WIFI connectivity downtown. 

Ms. Pierce stated that the CBJ IT department had conducted research which suggested they could utilize 
a traffic optimization protocol to capture visitor internet traffic and reroute that traffic to help with 
downtown WIFI bandwidth. 

Assemblymember Adkison asked why the public downtown bear-proof garbage cans needed $100,000 in 
funding. 

Ms. Pierce answered that the director of Parks and Recreation had confirmed that the bear-proof 
garbage cans downtown needed to be replaced. 

Assemblymember Woll asked why private dock funding was still on the list of passenger fee items. 

Ms. Pierce stated that she was actively working on an agreement with the private docks that would 
settle the funding discussion but that funding for restrooms and security is in line with the funding CBJ’s 
Docks and Harbors receives from passenger fees, as funding for these purposes is considered a benefit to 
the public. 

Assemblymember Hale asked when the Assembly could act if they disagreed with some of the funding 
recommendations. 

Ms. Pierce answered that the Assembly was welcome to make a recommendation tonight or they could 
wait until April during the budget process discussion. 

Assemblymember Hughes-Skandijs asked about the negotiations between the cruise ship companies, the 
two private dock owners, and CBJ. 

Ms. Pierce responded that the private docks had long-term lease agreements for around five years. She 
stated that one of her goals was to encourage cruise ships to use the city docks with the option to plug 
into city shore power but that this shore power still needed to be installed. She explained that a rate 
study would likely enable city docks to raise their rates in competition with the private docks, stating that 
a competitive rate structure across the port would allow for more flexible agreements to moving ships, 
to maximize time on shore power. 

Chair Weldon expressed concern with the Downtown Business Association funding in the proposal. Ms. 
Pierce stated she would seek out additional information regarding this funding request. 

12 



       
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

    
 
 

 
 

□ 

12 of 12Section C, Item 1.Agenda Page February 7, 2024, Assembly Finance Committee 

E. SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

7. School District Funding Request 

These materials were discussed under Agenda Topic #4. 

F. NEXT MEETING DATE 

8.  March 6, 2024 

G. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:04 pm. 

13 



 

□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

The Juneau Arts & Humanities Council 
cultivates vibrant arts and cultural 

opportunities and is a leader in building a 
strong, prosperous community where 

creativity and innovation thrive. 
Through our core values of Community, Equity, and 

Stewardship, we work to bolster access to the arts and 
culture in our city. 

14 



 

 

   
 

□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

The Direction 
The JAHC is in the process of refocusing much of its work on educational programs and initiatives. 
We currently have a grant through Margaret A. Cargill Philanthropies (MACP), which enables our 
collaboration with the School District in creating artist residencies in classrooms, and additional arts 
activities for Juneau’s youth. This grant will carry activities through August 2025. Now, we’re 
focusing on creating additional sustainable education infrastructure so that activities don’t fall flat at 
that time. 

Last year alone, we created over 25,000 points of interaction with the arts for Juneau residents, and 
helped empower over 200 artists through our lobby shop, gallery program, scholarships, classes, and 
more. 

Technically Art 
This by-donation series of workshops 
focuses on bringing professional arts 
skills to youth and adults alike. 

Stress Free Art Night 
These free-to-attend art nights at the 
JACC are freeform and open for 
everyone. 

Future Programs 
We are holding continual collaborative 
dialogue with key partner agencies to 
increase how we can create impact in 
the arts for Juneau. 

15 

https://www.macphilanthropies.org/


 

 

   

□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

The Need 
Accessible Arts Education 
Given the financial crisis in our school district, ensuring 
high-functioning accessible and equitable education 
experiences is paramount. Funding community programs 
through major grants is a proven, cost effective method of 
creating arts education that will operate parallel to the lack 
of these programs in JSD for the foreseeable future. 

Juneau’s Creative Economy 
By creating sustained access to these community 
programs through grant funding, we aim to maintain 
productive functionality of our creative economic 
pipeline. 

Procedural Change 
We are highlighting the importance of education initiatives for 
grant applications we receive. We cannot control what these 
organizations choose to request funding for, but we can set 
the criteria for our independent grant panel to follow when 
deciding amounts to award. 

16 



 

  

 □ 

~ 

I I 

Section D, Item 2. 

The Impact 
Alaska Independent Musicians Initiative (AKIMI) 
With $8,000 awarded last year, AKIMI has been 

diligently laying groundwork and carving out space 

for growth in the independent music sector. 

KTOO 
With $10,000 awarded last year, KTOO was able to 
host Mga Kuwento, an important look at Filipino 
history in Southeast Alaska. 

Juneau Alaska Music Matters (JAMM) 

With $7,500 awarded last year, JAMM was able to 

continue its operations as a unique after-school 
program that combines music education with 

Indigenous language practice to create an 

exploration of storytelling, performance, and 

creativity. 17 



 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

□ 

The Strategy 

Section D, Item 2. 

The JAHC plans to... 

Service 16+ annual funding requests from partner organizations in greater capacities 
Create new instances of arts education in previously underserved areas 
Implement more accessible workshops, classes, and experiences to equip artists and young people 
for success 

Through these activities we will... 

Help carry arts education during the JSD financial crisis 
Empower Juneau’s arts economy in greater capacities 
Grow Juneau’s vibrancy through collaboration and 
access 

To do this we will need... 

Increased staffing to drive new initiatives 
High quality materials and supplies to better serve all of Juneau 
More financial freedom to explore, innovate, and create 

18 



 

JUNEAU S . ~ ~ ~ ~an es CO NCIL 

Section D, Item 2. 

Thank You! 
Phil Huebschen 
Executive Director 
phil@jahc.org 

www.jahc.org 
info@jahc.org 
@juneau_arts_council 

19 



□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

Juneau Community Foundation
Juneau Hope Endowment/CBJ Social Service Grants FY24

Juneau Community Foundation 
Juneau Hope Endowment/CBJ Social Service Grants FY24 

20 



 
 

 
 

  

 

  

               
                        

                       
            

          
              

                  
               

                  
            

            
                

             
                     

               
            

              
             

              
                    

              

     
               

     

□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

2023 Juneau Hope Endowment/CBJ Social Service Grants 
JUNEAU COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
2023 HOPE/CBJ BLOCK GRANTS 

CBJ Social 
 Juneau Service 

Grantee/Vendor or Internal Fund Memo Description  Total Grant Hope Fund Fund 

Alaska AIDS Assistance Association Syringe Program 92,000 92,000 
Alaska Legal Services Legal Equity Project 97,000 97,000 -
AWARE Trauma Informed Care & Community Navigators 158,016 158,016 -
Bartlett Regional Hospital Hospice & Home Care 171,205 171,205 
Catholic Community Services Adult Day & Senior Svcs 110,000 110,000 
Disability Law Center Benefits Advocacy Project 50,000 50,000 
Douglas Community United Methodist Church Weekend Food Bags for Students 52,910 52,910 
Family Promise Families Experiencing Homelessness 20,000 20,000 
Gastineau Human Services Comprehensive Substance Abuse Treatment 235,000 35,000 200,000 
Gastineau Human Services Flexible Funding JCHH 147,000 147,000 
JAMHI Health & Wellness Mental Health Support 410,400 410,400 
Juneau Housing First Collaborative Community Navigators & Glory Hall operating 510,000 152,500 357,500 
Juneau School District Title I Elem School Soc. Workers/Advocates 133,500 133,500 
NAMI Juneau & Juneau Suicide Prevention Mental Health Support 113,000 1,810 111,190 
Polaris House Polaris House Programs 25,000 25,000 
SAIL Inspiring Personal Independence 180,000 180,000 
SERCC Adult Education Services 60,000 60,000 
City/Borough of Juneau Sheiyi Xaat Hit Youth Shelter 200,000 200,000 
United Human Services Teal Street Center 69,900 69,900 
Southeast Alaska Food Bank Food Purchase - 15,000 
St. Vincent de Paul Community Navigators 75,000 75,000 

2,909,931 1,171,031 1,753,900 
Juneau Community Foundation Grant Administrative Fee 50,000 50,000 

2,959,931 1,171,031 1,803,900 

21 



□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

Juneau Housing First Collaborative dba The Glory Hall 
$510,000 

IMPACT 
* 15,695 safe emergency shelter nights (43 or more 
people/night) 
* 189 unique individuals received emergency shelter 
* 43,000 meals provided 
* 64 housing units full 
* 28 additional units of permanent supporting housing: on 
schedule to break ground in spring 2024 (HF Phase 3) 

Challenges: securing capital for funding Phase 3, staffing challenges 

22 



I I --

□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

Weekend Student Food Bags – Douglas Methodist Church 
$52,910 

IMPACT 
* 638: average number of students 
receiving weekend food bags, 20% increase 
from last year 
* 8943 bags filled (September - December) 
* Rotary, churches, and volunteers help fill 
bags weekly 

Challenges: cost of food increased, number of 
students needing food increased 

23 



I I -~ 

□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

Senior Services – Catholic Community Services 
$110,000 

IMPACT 
* 35 referrals of concern and mental health counseling 
provided to senior citizens 
* 12 Adult Day individuals paid partial cost for services 
* 15,197 home meals delivered to 211 clients and 1,153 
congregate meals provided to 64 clients (July through 
December) 

Challenges: cost of food increased, COVID relief 
monies declining, more people needing Meals on 
Wheels 

24 



□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

Mental Health Support – JAMHI Health & Wellness 
$410,400 

IMPACT 
* 618 people received services for behavioral 
health issues & 170 individuals received primary 
health services 
* 45 psychiatric assessments completed and 281 
individuals were seen for medication management 
* 66 individuals received Peer Support Services 
* 58 people participated in the wellness program 

Challenges: increased costs for personnel and 
difficulty filling vacancies. 

25 



□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

Adult Education Services – Southeast Regional Resource Center 
$60,000 

IMPACT 
* 125 GED Tests provided, 20 students 
achieved graduation, overall GED passing rate 
of 83% 
* 66 learners received adult education services 
* 18 trained volunteers work with students 

Challenges: high rate of staff turnover, shifting trends 
in student needs post pandemic, and lower student 
enrollment (preference for online learning) 

26 



□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

Families Experiencing Homelessness - Family Promise 
$20,000 

IMPACT 
* 25 sheltered guests received assistance 
* 64 families (158 individuals) received 
prevention programs to keep them housed 

Challenges: staffing changes were a challenge, 
now at full capacity. 

27 



Juneau 
~ Community 

Foundation 

□ 

Section D, Item 2. 

Thank you for your time. 

www.juneaucf.org 

28 

www.juneaucf.org


SUMMARY OF CBJ & JUNEAU HOPE ENDOWMENT FUND GRANTS 
FOR YEARS 2016 - 2023

Grantee CBJ Hope CBJ Hope CBJ Hope CBJ Hope CBJ Hope CBJ Hope CBJ Hope CBJ Hope CBJ Hope

JCF Operating 50,000.00      -                50,000.00      30,000.00      -                30,000.00      -                30,000.00      -                30,000.00      -                25,000.00      -                25,000.00      -                270,000.00    -                270,000.00        
Alaska Development Corp -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                5,260.00        5,000.00        -                4,500.00        -                -                5,800.00        1,200.00        11,060.00      10,700.00      21,760.00          
Alaska Legal Services -                97,000.00      19,000.00      78,000.00      -                78,000.00      75,868.21      -                -                70,138.00      7,500.00        50,000.00      -                35,000.00      28,400.00      41,600.00      130,768.21    449,738.00    580,506.21        
Alaskan AIDS Assistance Association 92,000.00      -                21,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                -                15,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                -                -                -                -                -                128,000.00    30,000.00      158,000.00        
Assoc for Education Young Children -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                70,000.00      25,000.00      45,000.00      25,000.00      115,000.00    140,000.00        
AWARE -                158,016.00    58,750.00      -                -                110,000.00    30,000.00      50,000.00      40,000.00      40,000.00      20,000.00      60,000.00      -                115,830.00    90,000.00      45,000.00      238,750.00    578,846.00    817,596.00        
Bartlett Regional Hospital 38,750.00      152,594.00    -                200,000.00    -                210,000.00    -                204,785.37    -                -                -                -                -                -                -                38,750.00      767,379.37    806,129.37        
Big Brothers Big Sisters -                -                10,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                25,000.00      -                35,000.00      -                35,000.00      -                30,000.00      -                22,000.00      -                172,000.00    -                172,000.00        
Catholic Community Service 110,000.00    -                44,000.00      199,241.00    109,881.00    85,000.00      182,140.05    13,850.00      85,000.00      115,981.00    119,400.00    99,951.00      90,000.00      150,000.00    147,000.00    50,000.00      887,421.05    714,023.00    1,601,444.05      
CCTHITA -                -                -                -                50,000.00      -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                50,000.00      -                50,000.00          
Communities in Schools -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                25,000.00      -                25,000.00      25,000.00          
Disability Law Center 50,000.00      -                68,000.00      -                35,000.00      -                45,000.00      -                -                50,000.00      -                80,000.00      -                -                -                -                198,000.00    130,000.00    328,000.00        
Discovery Southeast -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                13,000.00      -                13,000.00      13,000.00          
Douglas Community United Meth 29,160.00      -                20,000.00      -                5,508.00        12,436.00      -                25,000.00      25,000.00      -                25,000.00      -                -                30,000.00      25,000.00      -                129,668.00    67,436.00      197,104.00        
Eagle River Methodist Church -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                10,000.00      -                -                -                10,000.00      10,000.00          
Facing Foster Care Alaska -                -                -                5,000.00        5,000.00        -                5,500.00        -                5,000.00        -                -                5,000.00        -                -                15,500.00      10,000.00      25,500.00          
Family Promise of Juneau 20,000.00      -                22,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                -                5,000.00        -                -                87,000.00      5,000.00        92,000.00          
Front Street Center -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                15,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                15,000.00          
Gastineau Human Services 200,000.00    182,000.00    165,000.00    240,000.00    155,000.00    200,000.00    94,877.00      268,123.00    50,000.00      328,740.00    220,000.00    215,000.00    265,880.00    183,330.00    30,000.00      297,900.00    1,180,757.00  1,915,093.00  3,095,850.00      
Goldbelt Heritage Foundation -                -                8,000.00        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                8,000.00        -                8,000.00            
Haven House -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                45,000.00      -                25,000.00      20,000.00      45,000.00      -                25,000.00      -                140,000.00    20,000.00      160,000.00        
JCCM - Glory Hall -                -                150,000.00    90,000.00      -                90,000.00      45,000.00      45,000.00      90,000.00      -                35,000.00      55,000.00      22,520.00      22,480.00      50,000.00      90,000.00      392,520.00    392,480.00    785,000.00        
Resurrection Lutheran Church - JUMPP -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                30,000.00      -                -                -                -                -                -                -                30,000.00      -                30,000.00          
JAMHI Health & Wellness 410,400.00    -                95,000.00      -                5,514.63        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                510,914.63    -                510,914.63        
Juneau Housing First Collaborative 357,500.00    152,500.00    100,000.00    -                -                100,000.00    50,000.00      100,000.00    -                120,000.00    42,500.00      47,500.00      -                90,000.00      -                -                550,000.00    610,000.00    1,160,000.00      
Juneau Family Birth Center -                -                -                -                8,750.00        -                -                -                10,000.00      -                10,000.00      -                -                -                12,000.00      -                40,750.00      -                40,750.00          
Juneau Police Department -                -                -                -                -                15,680.00      -                -                -                18,500.00      -                11,000.00      17,500.00      -                30,000.00      -                92,680.00      92,680.00          
Juneau School District -                133,500.00    -                100,765.00    90,000.00      -                84,900.00      -                66,500.00      48,500.00      61,500.00      -                25,000.00      -                30,000.00      48,500.00      592,165.00    640,665.00        
Juneau Youth Services -                -                39,600.00      -                -                -                35,000.00      -                80,000.00      60,000.00      25,000.00      51,500.00      58,000.00      95,000.00      90,000.00      96,000.00      327,600.00    302,500.00    630,100.00        
MHSA Community Plan -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                45,000.00      -                45,000.00      -                -                -                -                -                90,000.00      -                90,000.00          
NAMI - Juneau 111,190.00    -                153,000.00    -                113,000.00    -                13,000.00      97,000.00      12,000.00      -                -                10,700.00      -                15,400.00      -                -                402,190.00    123,100.00    525,290.00        
NCADD -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                85,000.00      14,782.00      45,000.00      100,000.00    130,000.00    114,782.00    244,782.00        
Northern Light UM Church - JUMPP -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                30,000.00      -                60,000.00      -                60,000.00      -                150,000.00    150,000.00        
Polaris House 25,000.00      -                25,000.00      -                25,000.00      -                25,000.00      -                -                -                -                25,000.00      -                25,000.00      2,000.00        23,000.00      102,000.00    73,000.00      175,000.00        
SAIL 180,000.00    -                124,000.00    -                147,261.00    -                55,000.00      100,000.00    75,000.00      35,000.00      90,000.00      -                85,000.00      -                75,000.00      20,000.00      831,261.00    155,000.00    986,261.00        
SERRC 60,000.00      -                77,000.00      -                77,000.00      -                77,000.00      -                77,000.00      -                77,000.00      -                100,000.00    -                100,000.00    8,783.00        645,000.00    8,783.00        653,783.00        
Sheiyi Xaat Hit Youth Shelter -                200,000.00    -                150,000.00    -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                350,000.00    350,000.00        
Southeast Alaska Food Bank -                -                10,000.00      -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                10,000.00      -                10,000.00          
St. Vincent de Paul -                75,000.00      30,000.00      -                -                -                -                50,000.00      104,900.00    105,100.00    35,000.00      193,000.00    -                57,000.00      -                28,500.00      169,900.00    508,600.00    678,500.00        
United Human Services 69,900.00      -                65,400.00      8,434.00        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                135,300.00    8,434.00        143,734.00        
Zach Gordon Youth Center -                -                -                15,000.00      -                165,000.00    -                15,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                15,000.00      -                30,000.00      -                270,000.00    270,000.00        

1,803,900.00  1,150,610.00  1,354,750.00  1,086,440.00  811,914.63    1,156,116.00  803,385.26    1,068,658.37  859,160.00    1,044,959.00  889,900.00    1,039,651.00  806,400.00    1,031,322.00  812,200.00    1,034,983.00  8,141,609.89  8,612,739.37  16,754,349.26    

CBJ Annual Funding 1,803,900.00  1,354,750.00  806,400.00    806,400.00    851,400.00    851,400.00    806,400.00    812,200.00    
Carryover from prior years -                -                5,514.63        2,499.89        10,259.89      
Refund - NCADD -                -                -                -                -                48,759.89      -                

Carryover to future years -                -                -                5,514.63        2,499.89        10,259.89      -                

Special funding to JCCM - Glory Hall 150,000.00    

2023 20162022
Combined Total

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 Total

29

Section D, Item 2.

□ 

https://16,754,349.26
https://8,612,739.37
https://8,141,609.89
https://270,000.00
https://270,000.00
https://143,734.00
https://8,434.00
https://135,300.00
https://678,500.00
https://508,600.00
https://169,900.00
https://10,000.00
https://10,000.00
https://350,000.00
https://350,000.00
https://653,783.00
https://8,783.00
https://645,000.00
https://986,261.00
https://155,000.00
https://831,261.00
https://175,000.00
https://73,000.00
https://102,000.00
https://150,000.00
https://150,000.00
https://244,782.00
https://114,782.00
https://130,000.00
https://525,290.00
https://123,100.00
https://402,190.00
https://90,000.00
https://90,000.00
https://630,100.00
https://302,500.00
https://327,600.00
https://640,665.00
https://592,165.00
https://48,500.00
https://92,680.00
https://92,680.00
https://40,750.00
https://40,750.00
https://1,160,000.00
https://610,000.00
https://550,000.00
https://510,914.63
https://510,914.63
https://30,000.00
https://30,000.00
https://785,000.00
https://392,480.00
https://392,520.00
https://160,000.00
https://20,000.00
https://140,000.00
https://8,000.00
https://8,000.00
https://3,095,850.00
https://1,915,093.00
https://1,180,757.00
https://15,000.00
https://15,000.00
https://92,000.00
https://5,000.00
https://87,000.00
https://25,500.00
https://10,000.00
https://15,500.00
https://10,000.00
https://10,000.00
https://197,104.00
https://67,436.00
https://129,668.00
https://13,000.00
https://13,000.00
https://328,000.00
https://130,000.00
https://198,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://50,000.00
https://50,000.00
https://1,601,444.05
https://714,023.00
https://887,421.05
https://172,000.00
https://172,000.00
https://812,200.00
https://1,034,983.00
https://812,200.00
https://30,000.00
https://28,500.00
https://8,783.00
https://100,000.00
https://20,000.00
https://75,000.00
https://23,000.00
https://2,000.00
https://60,000.00
https://100,000.00
https://45,000.00
https://96,000.00
https://90,000.00
https://30,000.00
https://30,000.00
https://12,000.00
https://90,000.00
https://50,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://297,900.00
https://30,000.00
https://15,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://13,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://50,000.00
https://147,000.00
https://22,000.00
https://45,000.00
https://90,000.00
https://45,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://41,600.00
https://28,400.00
https://1,200.00
https://5,800.00
https://25,000.00
https://806,129.37
https://767,379.37
https://38,750.00
https://806,400.00
https://1,031,322.00
https://806,400.00
https://15,000.00
https://57,000.00
https://100,000.00
https://85,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://60,000.00
https://14,782.00
https://85,000.00
https://15,400.00
https://95,000.00
https://58,000.00
https://25,000.00
https://17,500.00


105 Municipal Way 

Juneau, AK  99801  

Phone: (907) 586-5215 

     

 

 

 

DATE:  February 29, 2024 

 

TO:  Assembly Finance Committee 

 

FROM: Angie Flick, Finance Director 

     

SUBJECT: 2024 Overview of Real Property Assessments  

 

The purpose of this memo is to share a high-level overview of the 2024 real property assessments. Annually, the 

Assessor is charged with assessing the real property within the City and Borough of Juneau as of January 1. These 

values, after the application of exemptions and/or adjustments through the appeals process, become the basis for 

property taxes. The Assembly will determine the mill rate during the upcoming budget deliberations. 

 

Real property assessments saw a small increase of 1.52% overall compared to 2023.  Below is the basic breakdown 

by type and year before exemptions or appeals.   

 

Property Type 2023 Assessed Value 2024 Assessed Value Increase/(Decrease) % Change 

Commercial $ 1,722,188,618 $ 1,743,524,121 $ 21,335,503 1.24% 

Residential $ 4,601,060,311 $ 4,677,454,096 $ 76,393,785 1.66% 

Vacant Land $    250,206,838 $    252,449,049 $   2,242,211 0.90% 

TOTAL $ 6,573,455,767 $ 6,673,427,266 $ 99,971,499 1.52% 

 

There are a few notable takeaways from this information: 

• This data is NOT final as appeals and exemptions still have outstanding processes and deadlines. 

• Senior Citizen Exemptions and Disabled Veteran Exemptions are due on March 31. 

• Appeals will be open through March with an anticipated resolution by June 1. 

• Most property assessments did not change much year over year. 

• In 2023, there was over $600M in exemptions across all property types. 

Assessment Notices are set to be mailed on March 1, 2024 which starts the appeal period and makes this information 

timely. 

30

Section D, Item 3.

CITY AND BOROUGH OF 

NEAU 
ALASKA'S CAPITAL CITY 

□ 



City and Borough of Juneau 
Assembly Finance Committee (AFC) – Weekend Option 

FY25/26 Proposed Budget Calendar and Key Dates – as of December 27, 2023 
 

Public hearings on the budget must be completed by May 1, per Charter Section 9.6 
Assembly must determine school district instructional funding and notify district within 30 days of 

receipt of district budget (Charter Section 13.6(b)) 
Assembly must appropriate school district funding by May 31 (Charter Section 13.6(b)) 

Assembly must adopt Operating Budget, Mill Levy, and Capital Improvement Plan by June 15th or 
the manager’s proposal is deemed adopted (Charter Section 9.7 & 9.8) 

April 1st – 7:00 pm – Regular Assembly (Intro) 
A. Mill Levy Ordinance 2024-03 
B. CIP Resolution XXXX 
C. CBJ Budget Ordinance 2024-01 
D. School District Budget Ordinance 2024-02 

 
April 3rd – 5:30 pm – AFC Meeting   

A. SKIP 
 

April 6th – 9:00 am – AFC Meeting #1 (~6-8 hrs) 
A. Summary of FY25 Proposed Budget 
B. Overview of Major Revenues 
C. Hotel-Bed Tax Funding 
D. Assessors Valuation Report 
E. Overview of Debt Service  
F. Proposed Mill Rate  
G. Capital Improvement Plan – For Review 
H. Passenger Fee Plan – For Review 
I. Juneau School District 
J. Juneau International Airport 
K. Bartlett Regional Hospital 
L. Eaglecrest 
M. Docks & Harbors 

 
April 10th – 5:30 pm – AFC Meeting #2  

B. SKIP 
 

April 17th – 5:30 pm – AFC Meeting #3  
A. Assembly Grants & Community Requests 

a. Assembly Information Needs 
 

April 24th – 5:30 pm – AFC Meeting #4 
B. SKIP 

 
April 29th – 7:00 pm – Regular Assembly (Hearing) 

A. Mill Levy Ordinance 2024-03 
B. CIP Resolution XXXX 
C. CBJ Budget Ordinance 2024-01 
D. School District Budget Ordinance 2024-02 
E. Motion to Establish Local Funding for 

School District Operations  
 

May 1st – 5:30 pm – AFC Meeting #5* 
A. Assembly Grants & Community Requests 
B. Youth Activity Grant Funding 

 
May 8th – 5:30 pm – AFC Meeting #6* 

A. Manager’s Proposed Increments & Budget 
Amendments  

B. Capital Improvement Plan Amendments 
C. School District Budget – For Action  
D. Pending List – For Action 

 
May 13th – 7:00 pm – Regular Assembly 

A. Adoption of the School District’s Budget 
Ordinance 2024-02 

 
May 15th – 5:30 pm – AFC Meeting #7* 

A. Pending List – For Action 
B. Capital Improvement Plan – For Action 
C. Passenger Fee Plan – For Action 

 
May 22nd – 5:30 pm – AFC Meeting #8* 

A. Pending List – For Final Action 
B. Set Mill Rates – For Final Action 
C. Final FY25 Proposed Budget Decisions  

a. CIP Resolution XXXX 
b. Mill Levy Ordinance 2024-03  
c. CBJ Budget Ordinance 2024-01 

 
June 3rd – 6:00 pm – Special Assembly (Adoption) 

A. Mill Levy Ordinance 2024-03 
B. CIP Resolution XXXX 
C. CBJ Budget Ordinance 2024-01 

 
June 5th – 5:30 pm – Regular Business AFC  

A. TBD 
 
* These may be consolidated into fewer meetings. 
May 29th likely not utilized. 

 

31

Section D, Item 5.

□ 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
                                         MEMORANDUM OFFICE OF THE ASSESSOR 

155 Heritage Way 
Juneau, AK 99801 

Phone: (907) 586-5215 Ext 4906 
Fax: (907) 586-4520 

E-Mail: Mary.Hammond@juneau.gov 
Date: February 28, 2024 
 
To:   Mayor and Assembly 

 
From: Mary Hammond, Assessor 
 
RE: Economic Development – Export Manufacturing Exemption 
 
The Assessor’s Office received the following 2024 Export Manufacturing Exemption Applications for business personal property used 
in manufacturing.  The Assembly must approve any export manufacturing exemption for real or business personal property, CBJ 
69.10.020(1)(c). 
 
The property owners listed below have had Assembly approval in the past.  It is recommended that their new applications be 
approved. 
 
 

2024
 AK GLACIER 
SEAFOOD INC  

 AKBEV GROUP LLC 
 FORBIDDEN PEAK 

BREWERY 
 DEVILS CLUB 
BREWING CO 

Total Assessed Value 2,758,926        9,305,463                   267,643                   210,361           

Mandatory Exempt  Amount 100,000           100,000                      100,000                   100,000           

Taxable Value 2,658,926        9,205,463                   167,643                   110,361           

Tax Amount @ FY24 Estimated Mill Rate (10.56) 28,078             97,210                        1,770                       1,165               

Prior Years Export Mfg Exempt Value 542,445           1,329,732                   163,353                   87,854             

New Export Mfg Exempt Value 292,978           176,170                      4,290                       60,533             

Total Export Mfg Exempt Value 835,423           1,505,902                   167,643                   148,387           

Taxable Value Before Mandatory Exemption Value 1,923,503        7,799,561                   100,000                   61,974             

Mandatory Exempt Value 100,000           100,000                      100,000                   61,974             

Total Taxable Value after both exemptions 1,823,503        7,699,561                   -                           -                   

Total Amount Paid@ FY24 Estimated Mill Rate (10.56) 19,256             81,307                        -                           -                   

Total Prior YearsExport Mfg Tax Exempt 5,728               14,042                        1,725                       928                  

Total New Export Mfg Tax Exempt 3,094               1,860                          45                            639                  

Total Tax to be Exempted 8,822               15,902                        1,770                       1,567               

 
 
 
 
Attached are copies of their applications. 
 
 
 

32

Section D, Item 6.

□ 



2 | P a g e

A. Export Manufacturing

CBJ 69.10.020(10) provides for exempting qualifying manufacturing property from assessment and taxation. Qualifying property may 
receive a declining five-year percentage exemption from the property’s market value as follows:  

• 100% exemption in year 1
• 80% exemption in year 2
• 60% exemption in year 3
• 40% exemption in year 4
• 20% exemption in year 5

Property owners seeking an exemption must file a request with the Assessor’s Office on or before January 31 of each year. The code 
places the authority for approving the manufacturing exemption requests with the Assembly. 

The Assessor’s Office has received three property manufacturing exemption requests for the 2024 tax year (FY25 budget year). 

1. Alaska Glacier Seafood’s, Inc. filed a manufacturing exemption for machinery and equipment totaling $292,978 ($3,094 in property
tax).

In addition, Alaska Glacier Seafood’s has $542,445.00 in property qualifying from prior years, for a total 2024 assessment exemption of 
$835,423 or ($8,822 in property taxes). 

The Assessor’s Office has determined that the property exemption request meets the code requirements and recommends approval of 
this exemption request. 

2. Alaskan Brewing Company, LLC filed a manufacturing exemption for machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures, computers and
software, and vehicles totaling $176,170 ($1,860 in property tax).

In addition, Alaskan Brewing has $1,329,732 in property qualifying from prior years, for a total 2024 assessment exemption of 
$1,505,902 ($15,902 in property taxes). 

The Assessor’s Office has determined that the property exemption request meets the code requirements and recommends approval of 
this exemption request. 

3. Forbidden Peak Brewery has filed a manufacturing exemption for machinery and equipment for the assessment year 2024.

Forbidden Peak Brewery has filed a manufacturing exemption for machinery and equipment totaling $4,290 ($45 in property tax). 

In addition, Forbidden Peak Brewery has $163,353 in property qualifying from prior years, for a total 2024 assessment exemption of 
$163,353 ($1,770 in property taxes). 

The Assessor’s Office has determined that the property exemption request meets the code requirements and recommends approval of 
this exemption request. 

4.Devils Club Brewing CO has filed a manufacturing exemption for machinery and equipment totaling $60,533 ($639 in property tax).

In addition, Devils Club Brewing CO has $87,854 in property qualifying from prior years, for a total 2024 assessment exemption of 
$148,387 or ($1,567 in property taxes). 

The Assessor’s Office has determined that the property exemption request meets the code requirements and recommends approval of 
this exemption request. 

I recommend approval of these exemption requests. 

____________________________ _____________________ 
Mary Hammond              Date 
Assessor 

2/28/2024

33

Section D, Item 6.

1 J t 

□
 



I:\000 New Forms Drafts\Export Manufacturing.docx

We employ approx 30 year around employees and hire another 100 or so seasonal workers
who work within CBJ.

We buy and process fish within CBJ and export approx 96% of it out of CBJ.

We buy and process locally caught fish and sell it to local stores and restaurants, which reduces the need for importing fish in to CBJ.

2023

Alaska Glacier Seafoods, Inc.
59811

Kristie Erickson
kristie@alaskaglacierseafoods.com

907-790-3592

Box 34363

Juneau, AK 99803

907-790-3590

13555 Glacier Highway

Juneau, AK 99801

Seafood Processing

272728

94

all allowable

1/27/2023

96

4

4

4

8

1/31/2024

34

Section D, Item 6.

I 

Cl ~ ,.:..N!J ~ .OUGH (Jf 

jLJNEAU 
Office of the Assessor 

155 S Seward Street 

Juneau AK 99801 

Organization Name 

BPP Account# 

Parcel ID# 

Name of Applicant 

Email Address 

In Accordance with CBJ 69.10.020(10) certain Real Property and Business Personal Property may be partially exempt 
when used in a manufacturing business. Application for this exemption must be submitted to the municipal assessor 
before January 31 of the applicable tax year. 

Primary Phone# Secondary Phone# 
Mailing Address Property Address 

Type of Business 

Sales Tax Account Number 
Has this property ever been taxed in the CBJ? LJ Yes [2] No 

Is this property used in a trade or business having fewer than 500 annual full-time @ Yes D No 
equivalent employees? How Many?I I 
Does this business create employment within the CBJ? [ ✓JYes1 !No 
Explain: 

Does this business generate sales outside the CBJ of goods produced within the CBJ? l ✓ I Yes I J No 

Explain : 

What percent of total production is exported outside the CBJ? I 1% 
Does this business reduce the importation of goods from outside the CBJ? [ ✓ l Yes O No 
Explain : 

Has this property been used in the same trade or business in another municipality within the 0 Yes tz]I No 
past 6 months? 
List detail of real or personal property and the total market value which you are seeking to Total market value to be exempted: 
be exempted. (use attachment if necessary) ~ I 
Certification : 
I hereby certify that the answers given on this application are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I understand ti-at a 
willful misstatement is punishable by a fine or imprisonment under AS 11.56.210. 

Signature and Title of Applicant: 
Date, I 

I ~~L I 
Assessor Approval [ ] Yes [ ] No Date: Comments: 

Contact Us: CBJ Assessor's Office 

Phone: Email: Website: Physical Location 
Phone# {907) 586-5215 Assessor_Office@juneau .gov http://www.juneau.org/finance 155 South Seward St Rm. 114 

Juneau AK 99801 

I 

I 

Fax# {907) 586-4520 --

LJ 



35

Section D, Item 6.

Office of the Assessor 

155 S Seward Street 

Juneau AK 99801 

Organization Name 

BPP Account# 

Parcel ID# 

Name of Applicant 

Email Address 

AKBEV GROUP, LLC 
521150 

Alaskan Brewing Company 

accounti ng@alaskanbeer.com 

In Accordance with CBJ 69.10.020(10) certain Real Property and Business Personal Property may be partially exempt 
when used in a manufacturing business. Application for this exemption must be submitted to the municipal assessor 
before January 31 of the applicable tax year. 

Primary Phone# (907) 780-5866 Secondary Phone# 
Mailing Address 5429 Shaune Drive Property Address Same 

Juneau, AK 99801 

Type of Business Beverage Manufacturing 
Sales Tax Account Number 890135 
Has this property ever been taxed in the CBJ? LJ Yes 0 No 

Is this property used in a trade or business having fewer than 500 annual full-time W Yes D No 
equivalent employees? How Many?l92 I 
Does this business create employment within the CBJ? I ✓ I Yes I I No 
Explain: 

We currently employee 69 full-time positions located in Juneau 

Does this business generate sales outside the CBJ of goods produced within the CBJ? r ✓ I Yes I I No 
Explain: 

We ship our products to a total of 25 states including throughout the State of AK 

What percent of total production is exported outside the CBJ? ls1 1% 
Does this business reduce the importation of goods from outside the CBJ? [ZJ Yes O No 
Explain: 

Our locally manufactured products are sold in nearly every bar and liquor store in Juneau, as well as in our brewery tasting room. 

Has this property been used in the same trade or business in another municipality within the 0 Yes t2J] No 
past 6 months? 

List detail of real or personal property and the total market value which you are seeking to Total market value to be exempted: 
be exempted. (use attachment if necessary) ~ $1,227,280 I 
Certification: 
I hereby certify that the answers given on this application are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I understand that a 
willful misstatement is punishable by a fine or imprisonment under AS 11.56.210. 
Signature and Title of Applicant: 

Date, I 
I I ~. CED I 1/3i I 2-t-

Assessor Approval [ ] Yes [ ] No Date : Comments: 

Contact Us: CBJ Assessor's Office 
! Phone: Email: Website: Physical Location 
' Phone# (907) 586-5215 Assessor_Office@juneau.org http://www.juneau.org/finance ! 155 South Seward St Rm. 114 

l_F __ ax_#~(_90_7~)_5_8_6-_4_5_20 ____ ~-----------~--------- _________ _LJ_u_ri_ea_u A __ K __ 9_98_0_1 ____ ~ 

1:\000 New Forms Drafts\Export Manufacturing.docx □ 



36

Section D, Item 6.

CITY AND ~OUCH Cf 

JUNEAU 
Office of the Assessor 

155 S Seward Street 

Juneau AK 99801 

Assessment Year 
Organization Name 

BPP Account# 

Parcel ID# 

Name of Applicant 

Email Address 

2024 
Forbidden Peak Brewery LLC 

911751 

4B2801030091 

Skye Stekoll 

skye@forbiddenpeak.com 

In Accordance with CBJ 69.10.020(10} certain Real Property and Business Personal Property may be partially exempt 
when used in a manufacturing business. Application for this exemption must be submitted to the municipal assessor 
before January 31 of the applicable tax year. 

Primary Phone# (907) 209-7348 Secondary Phone# 
Mailing Add ress PO Box 211370 Property Address 11798 Glacier Highway 

Auke Bay, AK 99821 Juneau , AK 99801 

Type of Business Brewery 

Sales Tax Account Number 01003760 
Has this property ever been taxed in the CBJ? U Yes {"'.J" No 
Is this property used in a trade or business having fewer than 500 annual full -time @' Yes U No 
equivalent employees? How Many? 1 

Does this business create employment within the CBJ? { "'_"f"Yes [J No 
Explain : . 

Our employees all live within the CBJ and our products are sold at our retail establishment and 
also at other bars, restaurants, and tourism organizations within CBJ 

Does this business generate sales outside the CBJ of goods produced within the CBJ? [Ej Yes O No 
Explain: 

We sell our product to various communities throughout Alaska, including Haines, Skagway, 
Anchorage, and Fairbanks 

What percent of total production is exported outside the CBJ? 1 % 
Does this business reduce the importation of goods from outside the CBJ? ~ Yes I J No 
Explain : 

Our product replaces imported beverages at local restaurants and bars 

Has this property been used in the same trade or business in another municipality within the O Yes (:J No 
past 6 months? 
List detail of real or personal property and the total market value which you are seeking to Total market value to be exempted: 
be exempted. (use attachment if necessary) $ 40,000 

Certification: 
I hereby certify that the answers given on this application are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I understand tl"Bt a 
willful misstatement is punishable by a fine or imprisonment under AS 11.56.210. 

s;gnatore and Title o~n~- Date: 

I /i7 /2.4. 
Assessor Approval [ ) Yes [ ] No Date: Comments: 

Contact Us: CBJ Assessor's Office 

Phone: Email: Website: Physical Location 
Phone# (907) 586-5215 ext4035 Assessor.Office@juneau.gov http://www.juneau.org/finance 155 South Seward St Rm. 114 
Fax# (907) 586-4520 Juneau AK 99801 

LJ 



37

Section D, Item 6.

I 

crv .:. D e:... 0 CH Of 

JUNEAU 
Office of the Assessor 
155 S Seward Street 
Juneau AK 99801 

Organization Name 
BPP Account# 
Parcel ID# 
Name of Applicant 
Email Address 

In Accordance with CBJ 69.10.020(10) certain Real Property and Business Personal Property may be partially exempt 
when used in a manufacturing business. Application for this exemption must be submitted to the municipal assessor 
before January 31 of the applicable tax year. 

Primary Phone# 9072098451 Secondary Phone# 
Mailing Address 100 N Franklin St Property Address Same as< 

Juneau. AK 99801 

Type of Business Brewerv 
Sales Tax Account Number 904743 
Has this property ever been taxed in the CBJ? LJ Yes IZJ No 
Is this property used in a trade or business having fewer than 500 annual full-time ~ Yes D No 
equivalent employees? How Many? I j ~ I 
Does this business create employment within the CBJ? 1£1 Yes I I No 
Explain: 

We employ cooks, beertenders, managers, brewers. 

Does this business generate sales outside the CBJ of goods produced within the CBJ? l✓I Yes I J No 
Explain : 

We export beer and other products to Anchorage and other areas of the state. 

What percent of total production is exported outside the CBJ? IIv 1% 
Does this business reduce the importation of goods from outside the CBJ? 171 Yes O No 
Explain : 

We manufacture products to be purchased in Juneau. 

Has this property been used in the same trade or business in another municipality within the D Yes CZ]I No 
past 6 months? 
List detail of real or personal property and the total market value which you are seeking to Total market value to be exempted: 
be exempted. (use attachment if necessary) $lsee sta□dacd da 
Certification : 
I hereby certify that the answers given on this application are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I understand that a 
willful misstatement is punishable by a fine or imprisonment under AS 11.56.210. 
Signature and Title of Applicant: 

Date, 112/20/23 
I C tHZ,n, WtFtFd 

I 

Assessor Approval [ ] Yes [ ] No Date: Comments: 

Contact Us: CBJ Assessor's Office 

Phone: Email: Website: Physical Location 
Phone# (907) 586-5215 Assessor_Office@juneau .gov http ://www.juneau.org/finance 155 South Seward St Rm. 114 

Juneau AK 99801 

I 

I 

Fax# (907) 586-4520 --

LJ 
1:\000 New Forms Drafts\Export Manufacturing.docx 


	Top
	Section C, Item 1.	February 7, 2024
	2-7-24 AFC Minutes-Draft-Final

	Section D, Item 2.	Partner Agency Program Updates
	FY25 CBJ Presentation_JAHC2
	2024 HOPE CBJ PRESENTATION 2023 Grants
	01 CBJ & Hope Grants - Historical Summary 2016-2023 

	Section D, Item 3.	2024 Assessed Property Valuations
	Memo - 2024 Assessed Property Values

	Section D, Item 5.	Assembly/Community Grants & Budget Calendar
	AFC Schedule for FY25 Budget - Weekend Option - Updated 2.29.2024

	Section D, Item 6.	Export Manufacturing Exemptions
	2024 ASR LTR ASMBLY signed and with backup

	Bottom



